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Cooper

Initiating Events

Significance:. Jun 22, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Inadequate measures to assure that accurate and conservative values were used to establish second level undervoltage relay setpoint.
The measures established by the licensee for the translation of design requirements were not adequate to assure that the values used to establish
the second level undervoltage relay setpoint were accurate and conservative with respect to the technical specifications. In addition, the measures
for promptly identifying and correcting the adverse condition were not adequate as demonstrated by the length of time this condition has existed
(since 1987). The failure to accurately translate design requirements was a violation of Criterion Ill of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50, and the
untimely corrective actions was a violation of Criterion XVI of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50. This violation is noncited in accordance with Section
VI.A of NRC's Enforcement Policy, and is in the licensee's corrective action program (Notification 10092429). (Section 1R21.5.b.1.) The finding was
of very low safety significance because, although the calculated values were not conservative and were not consistent with the technical
specification values, there were administrative procedures in place to prevent exceeding the correct analytical limit. Additionally, there was no
actual loss of safety function.

Inspection Report# : 2001005(pdf)

Significance: N/A Apr 03, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: URI Unresolved item

Potential Unreviewed Safety Question Related to Off-Site A/C Sources

IR 05000298-00-15; 12/31/2000-03/31/2001; Nebraska Public Power District; Cooper Nuclear Station. Integrated Resident/Regional Report; Safety
Eval. Prog., Heat Sink Perf., Personnel Perf. During Nonroutine Plant Evolutions, Postmaintenance Testing, and Physical Security Plan. The
inspectors identified that the 161 kV Auburn, Nebraska, line has never been analyzed and accepted as a General Design Criteria 17 qualified
offsite ac power source. The original design basis had the power source transferred from the 345 kV/161 kV startup station service transformer to
the 69 kV emergency transformer upon a loss of the 345 kV source. This issue is considered to be an unresolved item awaiting additional technical
evaluation by the licensee and the NRC (1R02).

Inspection Report# : 2000015(pdf)

Significance:. Mar 31, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: FIN Finding

Plant operators failed to properly control plant transients during a normal reactor shutdown.

IR 05000298-00-15; 12/31/2000-03/31/2001; Nebraska Public Power District; Cooper Nuclear Station. Integrated Resident/Regional Report; Safety
Eval. Prog., Heat Sink Perf., Personnel Perf. During Nonroutine Plant Evolutions, Postmaintenance Testing, and Physical Security Plan. Plant
operators failed to properly control plant transients during a normal reactor shutdown. Improper operator actions, to control reactor vessel level,
could have produced a loss of feed initiating event (Section 1R14). The inspectors determined the event was of very low safety significance using
the guidance of Inspection Manual Chapter 0609. The inspectors noted that Reactor Feed Pump A remained available, other emergency core
cooling system equipment was capable of injecting, and that the length of the transient was only slightly more than an hour.

Inspection Report# : 2000015 (pdf)

Significance:. Dec 18, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to develop a procedure for combating emergencies and other significant events required by Regulatory Guide 1.33, Appendix A,
Section 6.0

On September 7, 2001, a lightning storm caused the loss of one of the two offsite power circuits, as well as, intermittent degraded voltage on the
other. No emergency or abnormal procedure was available to address degraded voltage or partial loss-of-offsite power conditions. The failure to
have a procedure for combating emergencies and other significant events, specifically the loss or degradation of offsite power sources, was a
violation of Technical Specification 5.4.1, which requires that procedures for combating emergencies be established in accordance with Regulatory
Guide 1.33, Appendix A, Section 6.0. This violation is being treated as a noncited violation in accordance with Section VI.A of the NRC
Enforcement Policy. The licensee documented this issue in their corrective action process as Notification 10111895. This issue was more than
minor because it involved a credible impact on safety, in that, no procedure had been established for operators to combat the partial loss or
degradation of one or both offsite power sources. The lack of a procedure for the operators could cause or increase the likelihood of an initiating
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event due to a loss-of-offsite power. The issue was evaluated by the team using the significance determination process and determined to be of
very low safety significance (Green), since the reactor did not scram, and the critical busses remained energized without the need for emergency
power.

Inspection Report# : 2001010(pdf)

Significance:. Oct 04, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Licensee's Technical Specification bases Control program failed to ensure that the Technical Specification Bases were maintained
consistent with the Updated Final Safety Analysis Report

The licensee's Technical Specification Bases Control program failed to contain provisions to ensure that the Technical Specification Bases were
maintained consistent with the Updated Final Safety Analysis Report with respect to the offsite power sources supplying power to the essential
switchgear. The licensee documented this issue in their corrective action process as Notification 10110178. This issue was considered to have an
actual impact on safety, in that part of the safety functions of both off-site power sources was impacted. The issue was evaluated by the inspectors,
through discussion with a senior reactor analyst, to be of very low risk significance. All events resulting in the abnormal electrical distribution
configuration lasted less than 12 hours, and the critical busses remained energized without the need for emergency power (Section 1R04.1).
Inspection Report# : 2001006 (pdf)

Significance:. May 13, 2000

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

INAPPROPRIATE USE OF TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION LCO

IR05000298-00-06; on 04/02-5/13/00; Nebraska Public Power District, Cooper Nuclear Station. Integrated Resident & Regional Report;
Maintenance Rule and Health Physics. Licensed operators armed and withdrew Control Rod 42-19, after determining that the rod was inoperable,
in violation of Technical Specification 3.1.3. The rod had exhibited excessive rod speed during a reactor startup. Technical Specification 3.1.3
requires that an inoperable control rod be fully inserted and disarmed. Operators inappropriately applied the permissive of Technical Specification
3.0.5 to manipulate the control rod for troubleshooting and rod speed adjustment. Technical Specification 3.0.5 permits testing of equipment solely
to determine operability following corrective maintenance. The licensee documented these issues in their corrective action process as Resolved
Condition Report 2000-0046 and Resolved Condition Report 2000-0061, respectively. This noncited violation was characterized as a "green"
finding using the significance determination process. The increased control rod speed had very low safety significance because reactor engineers
demonstrated that excess margins were available to thermal limits during all times that the control rod was able to be moved.

Inspection Report# : 2000006 (pdf)

Significance:. May 13, 2000

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

FAILURE TO FOLLOW MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES

IR05000298-00-06; on 04/02-5/13/00; Nebraska Public Power District, Cooper Nuclear Station. Integrated Resident & Regional Report;
Maintenance Rule and Health Physics. On two occasions, maintenance personnel failed to follow maintenance procedures when working on a
control rod drive flow control valve. Maintenance workers failed to perform a specified step of a work order. As a result, the control rod
subsequently operated at approximately 3 times normal rod speed. Planners also deleted a postmaintenance test that would have verified the rod's
speed. The planners did not follow maintenance procedures that required work order revision approval for such changes. Both examples were in
violation of Technical Specification 5.4.1(a) that requires written procedures to be established, implemented, and maintained. The licensee
documented these issues in their corrective action process as Resolved Condition Report 2000-0046 and Resolved Condition Report 2000-0061,
respectively. This noncited violation was characterized as a "green" finding using the significance determination process. The increased control rod
speed had very low significance because reactor engineers demonstrated that excess margins were available to thermal limits during all times that
the control rod was able to be moved.

Inspection Report# : 2000006 (pdf)

Significance:. Apr 01, 2000

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

APPENDIX R LIGHTING INADEQUATE

The inspectors identified a failure to provide required emergency lighting for the access and egress route to the service water pumps. The vestibule
area outside the service water pump room did not have an emergency light. This issue had low safety significance. Operations personnel could
have taken compensatory measures to gain access to the room without lighting

Inspection Report# : 2000004 (pdf)
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Significance:. Nov 20, 1999

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

MAINTENANCE WORKERS FAILED TO PROPERLY IMPLEMENT A MAINTENANCE PROCEDURE, RESULTING IN THE UNPLANNED
LOSS AND SWITCHING OF A VITAL BUS (SECTION 1RO3)

Maintenance workers failed to properly implement a maintenance procedure, resulting in the unplanned loss and switching of a vital bus. The
inspectors concluded that worker failure to properly implement a maintenance procedure, resulting in the unplanned loss of a vital bus, was a
violation. This loss of the vital bus was characterized as having low safety significance based upon the significance determination process review
for reactor safety. Deenergizing the essential bus made the equipment powered from this bus unavailable for mitigation of an accident. However,
redundant equipment was continuously operable from another essential bus, and the deenergized bus automatically transferred and reenergized
within approximately 2 seconds. We are treating this violation as a noncited violation, consistent with the Interim Enforcement Policy for pilot plants.
Operations personnel documented this in their corrective action process as Significant Condition Report 99-0746.

Inspection Report# : 1999014 (pdf)

Mitigating Systems

Significance:. Jun 22, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to properly account for the static head in Calculation NEDC 92-050AT, "CM-PS-270 Setpoint Calculation," Revision 0.

The failure to properly account for the static head in Calculation NEDC 92-050AT, "CM-PS-270 Setpoint Calculation," Revision 0, resulted in the
licensee adjusting Switch CM-PS-270, residual heat removal system, loop A keep fill system. The incorrect setting could have allowed a void in the
keep fill line from being detected by the operators. This failure was a violation of Criterion Il of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50. This violation is
noncited in accordance with Section VI.A of NRC's Enforcement Policy, and is in the licensee's corrective action program (Notification 10089082).
(Section 1R21.5.b.2.) The finding was of very low safety significance because there was no evidence that voids existed and, therefore, there was
no actual loss of safety function.

Inspection Report# : 2001005(pdf)

Significance:. Apr 06, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to provide 20 feet seperation between redundant service water equipment.

IR 05000298/01-03; on 04/02-06/2001, onsite and 04/09-13/01, in-office; Cooper Nuclear Station; Triennial Fire Protection Inspection Cornerstone:
Mitigating Systems The team identified a noncited violation in Fire Zone 20A (service water pump room) in which equipment required for safe
shutdown of the plant following a fire was not separated by 20 feet horizontal distance, and there were intervening combustibles (Rubatex
insulation) that were not part of an exemption, nor included in the licensee's engineering evaluation. This was not in accordance with Section 111.G.2
(b) of Appendix R. This violation was entered into the licensee's corrective action program as Notification 10075408 and 10076323. This finding
was of very low safety significance because the area-wide fire suppression and detection systems were not degraded, and the increase in
combustible loading of the Rubatex insulation did not substantially increase the severity of a postulated fire in the fire area.

Inspection Report# : 2001003 (pdf)

Significance:. Apr 06, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to perform calculations to ensure that the locations and conditions of fire areas did not require as much water as is discharged
by nominal 1/2-inch orifice sprinkler. ..

IR 05000298/01-03; on 04/02-06/2001, onsite and 04/09-13/01, in-office; Cooper Nuclear Station; Triennial Fire Protection Inspection. The team
identified that on October 20, 1985, the licensee implemented modification design change MDC 85-48 in which they replaced 1/2-inch diameter
sprinkler heads with 1/4-inch diameter sprinkler heads in the reactor recirculation pump motor generator set lube oil pump area (958-foot elevation
of the reactor building) and in the reactor recirculation pump motor generator lube oil pump area (976 foot elevation of the reactor building). The
licensee failed to perform calculations to ensure that the reduction in the diameter of the sprinkler heads did not adversely affect the suppression
requirements in these fire areas, as required by the National Fire Protection Association Code 13. This was not in accordance with 10 CFR 50.48
(b). This violation was entered into the licensee's corrective action program as Notification 10073757. This finding was determined to be of very low
safety significance, because there were no safe shutdown systems in the areas that could be affected by a postulated fire.

Inspection Report# : 2001003 (pdf)
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Significance:. Apr 06, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to provide adequate emergency lighting to perform operator actions for safe shutdown.

IR 05000298/01-03; on 04/02-06/2001, onsite and 04/09-13/01, in-office; Cooper Nuclear Station; Triennial Fire Protection Inspection Green. The
team identified a noncited violation in Fire Zone 7A (control room basement) in that emergency lighting was not aligned properly to adequately
perform safe shutdown operator actions in accordance with Section I11.J of Appendix R to 10 CFR Part 50. This violation was entered into the
licensee's corrective action program as Notification 10076810. This finding was of very low safety significance because the operators would have
available dedicated hand held lights that would assist them in performing required actions.

Inspection Report# : 2001003 (pdf)

Significance:. Apr 06, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to install detectors as documented in the safety evaluation report which was not in accordance with 10 CFR 50.48(b).

IR 05000298/01-03; on 04/02-06/2001, onsite and 04/09-13/01, in-office; Cooper Nuclear Station; Triennial Fire Protection Inspection The team
identified a noncited violation in three areas (control room, diesel generator room, and the 1001-foot elevation of the reactor building) in which the
licensee failed to install detectors as documented in the safety evaluation report which was not in accordance with 10 CFR 50.48(b). This violation
was entered into the licensee's corrective action program as Notification 10078580, 10078607, and 10078606. This finding was determined to be of
very low safety significance due to the number of mitigating systems remaining.

Inspection Report# : 2001003 (pdf)

Significance:. Mar 31, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: FIN Finding

Testing of the residual heat removal heat exchangers may have resulted in an inaccurate estimation of their performance under design-
basis conditions.

IR 05000298-00-15; 12/31/2000-03/31/2001; Nebraska Public Power District; Cooper Nuclear Station. Integrated Resident/Regional Report; Safety
Eval. Prog., Heat Sink Perf., Personnel Perf. During Nonroutine Plant Evolutions, Postmaintenance Testing, and Physical Security Plan. Three
elements for the testing of the residual heat removal heat exchangers may have resulted in an inaccurate estimation of their performance under
design-basis conditions. The testing was often conducted under dynamic rather than stabilized thermal conditions, the testing was not conducted
during the worst season for biological growth (and the design basis temperatures), and the testing was conducted after a flush of the heat
exchanger that may have had the effect of improving the thermal performance (Section 1R07). The risk associated with the three anomalies in the
testing of the residual heat removal heat exchangers was determined to be of very low safety significance because the cumulative effect was likely
to be less than the available thermal performance margin. Additional factors that mitigated this concern were a recent change-out of valves in the
service water system that reduced the standby leakage flow through the residual heat removal heat exchangers and a recently-initiated practice of
running normal flow through the heat exchangers weekly for 30 minutes, both of which should have the effect of reducing the buildup of slime and
scale.

Inspection Report# : 2000015(pdf)

Significance:. Mar 31, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to document and maintain a design standard for surge suppression varistors in the Division 2 Emergency Diesel control circuit.
IR 05000298-00-15; 12/31/2000-03/31/2001; Nebraska Public Power District; Cooper Nuclear Station. Integrated Resident/Regional Report; Safety
Eval. Prog., Heat Sink Perf., Personnel Perf. During Nonroutine Plant Evolutions, Postmaintenance Testing, and Physical Security Plan. The
inspectors identified a noncited violation for the failure to document and maintain a design standard, for surge suppression varistors in the Division
2 emergency diesel control circuit. The use of incorrect values for these components caused the generator to frequently trip during the shutdown
process, and thereby be unavailable for immediate restart (Section 1R19). The noncited violation was of very low safety significance because this
condition only affected one diesel, and the condition only affected its ability to do a hot restart immediately after a previous run. The time that a
diesel is in this condition, compared to the standby condition, is very small. Therefore the probability of an actual demand for the diesel during
these conditions was very low.

Inspection Report# : 2000015(pdf)

Significance:. Jan 04, 2001
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Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to perform operability determination and/or declare equipment inoperable

IR 05000298-00-14, on 11/5-12/30/2000, Nebraska Public Power District, Cooper Nuclear Station Integrated Resident/Regional Report. The
inspectors determined that operations personnel did not perform an operability assessment for a safety-related service water pump, or declare the
pump inoperable, when the functionality of the pump was questioned. The failure to perform an operability determination, as required by station
procedure, is in violation of Technical Specification 5.4.1(a), for failure to follow Regulatory Guide 1.33, Appendix A, recommended procedures.
This noncited violation was determined to have very low safety significance because the nature of the failure was determined, through subsequent
testing, to not affect the safety function of the service water pump (Section 1R14).

Inspection Report# : 2000014 (pdf)

Significance:. Jan 04, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to properly implement a surveillance test procedure

IR 05000298-00-14, on 11/5-12/30/2000, Nebraska Public Power District, Cooper Nuclear Station Integrated Resident/Regional Report. This
inspection report covers a 7-week period of inspection by the resident inspectors. While performing undervoltage testing on Division 1 4160V
Essential Bus 1F, technicians failed to follow a procedural step, resulting in an unplanned plant transient. An inadvertent undervoltage signal
caused the following loads to trip: Reactor Recirculation Pump A, Service Water Pump A, Control Rod Drive Pump A, and selected nonessential
480 volt motor control centers. The failure to implement a surveillance procedure is in violation of Technical Specification 5.4.1(a), for failure to
follow Regulatory Guide 1.33, Appendix A, recommended procedures. This noncited violation was determined to have very low safety significance
based upon a significance determination process analysis of the equipment lost, performed by the regional senior reactor analyst. The event lasted
only 4 to 5 minutes, with one train of emergency core cooling systems remaining operable for the entire period (Section 1R22).

Inspection Report# : 2000014 (pdf)

Significance:. Jan 04, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to maintain design control for service water system

IR 05000298-00-14, on 11/5-12/30/2000, Nebraska Public Power District, Cooper Nuclear Station Integrated Resident/Regional Report. This
inspection report covers a 7-week period of inspection by the resident inspectors. The inspectors identified a lack of design control for service water
pump bolting standards after operators reported finding loose foundation nuts. Conflicting information regarding the use of washers for the service
water pump foundation bolts was provided in design documents. This is in violation of Criterion Il of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, for improper
design control. This noncited violation was determined to have very low safety significance because there would be no loss of service water
function, based upon the remaining foundation bolts being properly fastened and the licensee's seismic analysis for the loose bolts (Section 1R04).
Inspection Report# : 2000014 (pdf)

Significance:. Dec 14, 2000

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to Implement Design Requirements

Cooper Nuclear Station NRC Inspection Report 50-298/00-07 This special inspection report covered the activities associated with inspection and
assessment of environmental qualification issues. Plant personnel failed to identify problems with the environmental qualifications program until
they were specifically characterized by the NRC. Plant personnel also failed to identify problems with equipment that did not meet program
requirements during field walkdowns. In addition, plant personnel failed to enter self-identified deficiencies, in the environmental qualifications
program, into the corrective action program. These failures to properly identify problems and enter them into the corrective actions process
constituted an apparent violation of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion XVI (Section 02.04) This item was originally opened as an apparent
violation but later closed per letter from Nebraska Public Power District dated November 8, 2001, Reference #NLS2001104, and reopened and
closed as a noncited violation. This apparent violation was closed by letter from Nebraska Public Power District to NRC dated November 8, 2001,
Reference #NLS2001104. It was opened and closed as an NCV by same letter.

Inspection Report# : 2000007 (pdf)

Significance: SL-IV Dec 14, 2000

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: VIO Violation

Failure to Maintain Environmental Qualifications of Safety-Related Equipment

Cooper Nuclear Station NRC Inspection Report 50-298/00-07 This special inspection report covered the activities associated with inspection and
assessment of environmental qualification issues. The failures to environmentally qualify, maintain the qualification of, and document qualifications
in an auditable form, for equipment important to safety, constituted an apparent violation of 10 CFR 50.49 (Section 2.02). This item was orginally
opened as an apparent violation in IR 00-07. It was later closed per letter from Nebraska Public Power District dated November 8, 2001, Reference



2Q/2001 Inspection Findings - Cooper Page 6 of 22

#NLS2001104 and reopened as a violation, Severity Level IV.
Inspection Report# : 2000007 (pdf)

Significance:. Nov 04, 2000

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

FAILURE TO PERFORM OPERABILITY DETERMINATION AND/OR DECLARE EQUIPMENT INOPERABLE

IR 05000298-00-13; on 9/24-11/04/2000; Nebraska Public Power District; Cooper Nuclear Station, Integrated Resident & Regional Report.
Maintenance Rule Effectiveness. The inspectors determined that operations personnel did not declare that safety-related equipment was
inoperable, under degraded or nonconforming conditions, on three separate occasions. The separate conditions were the loss of an off-site ac
power circuit, a potentially generic problem with the closing mechanism of safety-related Magne-Blast circuit breakers, and the apparent excessive
leakage from the reactor equipment cooling system. The failure to perform operability determinations was considered a violation of Technical
Specification 5.4.1(a), for failure to follow Regulatory Guide 1.33, Appendix A, recommended procedures. This noncited violation was determined to
have very low safety significance because the minimum required number of offsite circuits remained available for the first example, and subsequent
evaluations determined there was not a loss of safety function for the other two examples (Section 1R15).

Inspection Report# : 2000013 (pdf)

Significance:. Nov 04, 2000

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

FAILURE TO ESTABLISH, IMPLEMENT, AND MAINTAIN PROCEDURES FOR THE OFF-SITE AC POWER CIRCUITS

IR 05000298-00-13; on 9/24-11/04/2000; Nebraska Public Power District; Cooper Nuclear Station, Integrated Resident & Regional Report.
Maintenance Rule Effectiveness. On August 24, 2000, engineering and maintenance personnel performed a temporary modification in the
345/161Kv switchyard. The licensee provided temporary power to auxiliary circuits for control power to off-site ac circuit breakers. The inspectors
identified that the licensee had not established procedures for the operation and maintenance of off-site access circuits. The failure to establish,
implement, and maintain Regulatory Guide 1.33, Appendix A, recommended procedures, was a violation of Technical Specification 5.4.1(a). This
noncited violation was determined to have very low safety significance because the minimum required number of offsite circuits remained available
at all times (Section 1R23).

Inspection Report# : 2000013 (pdf)

Significance:. Aug 25, 2000

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to Estabilish an Adequate Procedure

The licensee failed to establish an adequate work control procedure because it did not contain the requirement to establish a basis for deferring
corrective maintenance on Valve HPCI-MOV-MO19 for degraded conditions (i.e., degraded grease in motor-operator valve motor actuators)
beyond the next refueling outage. Generic Letter 96-07, "Periodic Evaluation of Motor Operated Valves," provided evaluation guidance for
degraded grease and the impact on motor operated valve operability. However, no technical evaluation or justification was performed for deferral of
the corrective maintenance. The issue was placed into the licensee's corrective action program as Problem Identification Report 4-11043. This
violation of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion V, is being treated as a Non-Cited Violation consistent with Section VI.A of the NRC
Enforcement Policy (50-298/0010-02) (Section 40A2.2.b). This issue was characterized as a green finding using the Significance Determination
Process. It was determined to have a very low risk significance because alternate means for safe shutdown and cooldown were available for the
degraded deferred components and the valve passed its last refueling outage surveillance tests.

Inspection Report# : 2000010 (pdf)

Significance:. Aug 25, 2000

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to Follow Procedures

Eleven examples of failure to follow required procedures were identified. The majority involved failure to perform operability evaluations as required
by Procedure 0.5.0PS and parent Procedure 0.5, "Conduct of Problem Identification and Resolution Process." One example was for not
performing an operability determination for the "D" diesel-driven fire water pump associated with the failure of an engine cooling system raw water
solenoid valve to stroke during a surveillance test. Failure to follow Procedure 0.5 OPS was a violation of Technical Specification 4.5.1.a. This
violation is being treated as a Non-Cited Violation in accordance with Section VI.A of the NRC Enforcement Policy. This issue was entered into the
licensee's corrective action program as Problem Identification Report 4-11393 (50-298/0010-01)(Section 40A2.1.b). This issue was characterized
as a green finding using the Significance Determination Process. It was determined to have very low risk significance because the system
remained operable in the examples identified or the specific example had been previously addressed by the Significance Determination Process at
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this level.
Inspection Report# : 2000010(pdf)

Significance: N/A Aug 12, 2000

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

FAILURE TO ATTAIN PRIOR COMMISSION APPROVAL FOR A PROCEDURE REVISION INVOLVING AN UNREVIEWED SAFETY
QUESTION

IR05000298-00-11; on 06/25-08/12/00; Nebraska Public Power District, Cooper Nuclear Station. Integrated Resident & Regional Report;
Maintenance Risk Assessments and Emergent Work Evaluation, Surveillance Testing. On July 2, 2000, engineering and operations personnel
revised a surveillance procedure to raise the drywell temperature limit from 148° F to 150° F. The licensee's basis for raising the limit was that the
instrument inaccuracy was already accounted for in the calculated net positive suction head margin for emergency core cooling systems. However,
the inspectors determined that adequate margin did not exist in these calculations. As a result, during the licensee's review of the procedure
change, the licensee failed to identify that the change involved an unreviewed safety question and therefore required Commission approval. The
failure to obtain Commission approval prior to raising the drywell temperature limit was a violation of 10 CFR 50.59. This violation is being treated
as a noncited violation in accordance with Section VI.A of the NRC Enforcement Policy and is in the licensee's corrective action program as
Problem Identification Report 4-10381.

Inspection Report# : 2000011 (pdf)

Significance:. Jan 03, 2002

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to follow procedure resulting in a fire

The licensee failed to ensure that combustible material was removed or protected from hot work resulting in a fire on November 26, 2001, located
in the reactor building on the torus area floor. This was determined to be a violation of Technical Specification 5.4.1.d. This violation is being treated
as a noncited violation consistent with Section VI.A of the NRC Enforcement Policy. This issue has been entered into the licensee's corrective
action process as Notification 10126869. This issue was determined to have a credible impact on safety because an actual fire inside the reactor
building occurred. This noncited violation was characterized under the significance determination process as having very low safety significance
because the fire was quickly identified and extinguished, and the fire did not, and could not affect any equipment necessary for maintaining safe
shutdown conditions. Specifically, the reactor cavity was flooded to greater than 23 feet, the spent fuel pool gates were open, a division of
shutdown cooling was operable, and emergency core cooling system instrumentation was not affected.

Inspection Report# : 2001007 (pdf)

Significance:. Jan 03, 2002

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to identify and correct 10 CFR 50.49 requirements associated with safety-relief valve cables

The licensee failed to identify and correct a condition adverse to quality. Power cables to the safety-relief valve solenoid valves were not
maintained in conformance with 10 CFR 50.49 requirements from 1995 through October of 2001. The licensee had several opportunities to identify
and correct this condition from April 2000 to October 2001. This was determined to be a violation of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion XVI.
This violation is being treated as a noncited violation consistent with Section VI.A of the NRC Enforcement Policy. This issue has been entered into
the licensee's corrective action process as Notification 10092693. This finding was more than minor because, if left uncorrected, it would have
posed a more significant issue. This noncited violation was characterized under the significance determination process as having very low safety
significance because the safety-relief valves were later determined to have been qualified.

Inspection Report# : 2001007 (pdf)

Significance:. Jan 03, 2002

Identified By: Licensee

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Licensee personnel inappropriately removed seismic restraint/pipe support from an operable and running service water piping system
On November 15, 2001, the licensee identified that personnel had inappropriately removed a seismic restraint/pipe support (SW-H138) from an
operable and running service water piping system. This was determined to be a violation of Technical Specification 5.4.1(a). This violation is being
treated as a noncited violation consistent with Section VI.A of the NRC Enforcement Policy. This issue has been entered into the licensee's
corrective action process as Notification 10123800. The safety significance of this violation was determined to be very low. Although the operators
declared the service water system inoperable, the removal of the support hanger did not affect the service water system from performing its
function to maintain the plant in a safe shutdown condition. Specifically, the reactor cavity was flooded to greater than 23 feet, the spent fuel pool
gates were open, a division of shutdown cooling was operable, and emergency core cooling system instrumentation was not affected. Additionally,
the section of piping affected was immediately isolated following discovery of the missing hanger until repairs were performed.

Inspection Report# : 2001007 (pdf)
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Significance:. Jan 03, 2002

Identified By: Licensee

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Licensee personnel inappropriately racked out the Residual Heat Removal Pump B breaker

On November 9, 2001, the licensee identified that, during performance of a tagout, personnel inappropriately racked out the Residual Heat
Removal Pump B breaker. This was determined to be a violation of Technical Specification 5.4.1(a). This violation is being treated as a noncited
violation consistent with Section VI.A of the NRC Enforcement Policy. This issue has been entered into the licensee's corrective action process as
Notification 10122626. The safety significance of this violation was determined to be very low. Residual Heat Removal Pump B was not in use
when the breaker was removed and did not affect the ability to maintain the plant in a safe shutdown condition. Specifically, the reactor cavity was
flooded to greater than 23 feet, the spent fuel pool gates were open, a division of shutdown cooling was operable, and emergency core cooling
system instrumentation was not affected. Additionally, the removal of the wrong breaker was immediately identified by the licensee and it was
returned to service within 1 hour.

Inspection Report# : 2001007 (pdf)

Significance: N/A Dec 18, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: FIN Finding

Numerous examples of inadequate corrective actions and improper implementation of the corrective action program demonstrated a
continued trend of inadequate problem identification and resolution.

Numerous examples of inadequate corrective actions and improper implementation of the corrective action program demonstrated continued
inadequate problem identification and resolution. This was primarily due to a general lack of understanding and ownership of site-wide programs
and procedures associated with the identification and resolution of problems. Each of the program areas discussed below include violations of NRC
requirements that were determined to be more than minor but of very low safety significance (Green) using the significance determination process.
The licensee documented this issue in their corrective action process as Notification 10112315, which is being addressed in Significant Condition
Report 2001-0938, "Continued Difficulty in Implementing the Corrective Action Program." For example: The team identified that during the
implementation of the corrective action program issues were improperly characterized and classified resulting in those issues being inappropriately
removed from the corrective action program. This resulted in ineffective and untimely corrective actions since the items were either closed or
awaiting resolution. This issue is described in this report and involves both the mitigating systems and barrier integrity cornerstones of reactor
safety. Numerous concerns with scaffolds constructed near operable safety-related equipment were identified. The licensee had not constructed
scaffolding in accordance with plant procedures and the required scaffolding engineering evaluations for nonconforming items had not been
performed. Previous similar findings associated with improper scaffolding had been identified in NRC Inspection Report 50-298/00-04. Despite
corrective actions involving new procedures and training, similar problems continued. The licensee had not effectively corrected problems with
personnel recognizing when and how to perform adequate operability determinations and evaluations. A noncited violation was identified, which
involved examples from both the mitigating system and barrier integrity cornerstones. This cross-cutting issue was documented in the previous
NRC problem identification and resolution inspection and other similar findings associated with this cross-cutting issue are noted in NRC Inspection
Reports 50-298/00-10, 50-298/00-13, 50-298/00-14, and 50-298/01-02.

Inspection Report# : 2001010(pdf)

Significance:. Dec 18, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failures to follow required procedures were identified when operability determinations were not performed or issues were not
considered for their impact on the plant.

Two examples of a failure to follow procedure were identified, which involved failure to perform operability evaluations, as required by Procedure
0.5.0PS, "Operations Review of Problem Identification Reports/Operability Determinations/ Evaluations," Revision 7. Failure to follow Procedure
0.5 OPS was a violation of Technical Specification 5.4.1.a. This violation is being treated as a noncited violation in accordance with Section VI.A of
the NRC Enforcement Policy (Section 40A2.a). Two examples included: On August 28, 2001, operators placed the electrical distribution system in
a configuration that rendered both offsite power circuits inoperable, but did not declare them inoperable or enter a limiting condition for operation,
as required by their technical specifications. The team determined that this configuration would not allow both offsite circuits to auto-transfer to both
critical buses, as described in the Updated Safety Analysis Report. The licensee failed to evaluate operability for a degraded condition that affected
the function of an offsite power circuit. This issue was documented as Notification 10109209. This issue was considered to have an actual impact
on safety, in that, part of the safety functions of both offsite power sources was impacted. The issue was evaluated using the significance
determination process by the team and a senior reactor analyst, to be of very low safety significance (Green). The abnormal electrical distribution
configuration lasted less than 12 hours, and the critical buses remained energized without the need for emergency power. On September 7, 2001,
the licensee lost both offsite power sources because of lightning strikes. On September 13, 2001, line crews conducting tests in the 345 kV
switchyard found a failed relay, which improperly allowed the T2 auto-transformer to isolate. The licensee failed to recognize that the switchyard did
not operate as designed and, therefore, failed to evaluate the failed relay's impact on operability. The licensee documented this deficiency in
Notification 10109324. This issue was considered to have an actual impact on safety, in that, a defective relay caused the fault on a non-qualified
offsite power source to trip a qualified source. The team and a senior reactor analyst reviewed the loss-of-offsite power initiators and accidents. The
issue was evaluated using the significance determination process by the team and a senior reactor analyst, to be of very low safety significance
(Green), since this issue did not significantly increase the likelihood of a loss-of-offsite power/loss-of-coolant accident scenario.

Inspection Report# : 2001010(pdf)
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Significance:. Dec 18, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Ineffective corrective actions related to operability determinations/evaluations

The licensee failed to correct a previously identified problem associated with conducting adequate operability determinations/evaluations. The NRC
problem identification and resolution inspection (50-298/00-10), conducted August 2000, identified multiple examples of a failure to perform
operability determinations and evaluations, as required by Administrative Procedure 0.5 OPS, "Operations Review of Problem Identification
Reports/Operability Determinations/Evaluations." Subsequently, a substantive cross-cutting finding of inadequate human performance was
identified in NRC Inspection Report 50-298/00-13, associated with failure to implement the problem identification program in the area of operability
determinations/evaluations. Numerous additional noncited violations associated with inadequate operability determinations/ evaluations were
identified in NRC Inspection Reports 50-298/00-14 and 50-298/01-02. These repeat findings from past inspections combined with two additional
examples associated with reactor building equipment cooling flow and an unrecognized overvoltage condition on the emergency station service
transformer collectively reflect inadequate corrective actions and a continued programmatic problem. This 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion
XVI, corrective action violation is being treated as a noncited violation in accordance with Section VI.A of the NRC Enforcement Policy. The
licensee wrote Notification 10112315 to address this violation. This issue was more than minor because it involved a credible impact on safety, in
that, failing to recognize when degraded structures, systems, or components require an operability determination or evaluation could result in
continued operation of the facility when plant technical specifications would require a shutdown. This issue was determined to have very low risk
significance (Green) because the systems remained operable in the examples identified or each specific example had been previously addressed
by the NRC's significant determination process at this level.

Inspection Report# : 2001010(pdf)

Significance:. Dec 18, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Ineffective corrective actions related to the scaffold control program

The licensee failed to correct a previously identified problem in the construction and control of scaffolding in accordance with Procedure 7.0.7,
"Scaffolding Construction and Control." During a plant walkdown with operators, the team identified numerous examples where scaffolding was
constructed in close proximity or attached to operable safety-related equipment, which did not satisfy requirements contained in Procedure 7.0.7.
Many of these nonconformances identified by the team had not been evaluated by engineering, as required by Procedure 7.0.7. The licensee
subsequently performed additional walkdowns and a total of 47 scaffolding configuration nonconformances were identified. Each nonconformance
was evaluated by engineering and, although no operability issues were identified, 11 nonconformances had to be corrected. This 10 CFR Part 50,
Appendix B, Criterion XVI, corrective action violation is being treated as a noncited violation in accordance with Section VI.A of the NRC
Enforcement Policy. The issue was placed in the licensee's problem identification and resolution program as Notification 10111303. The issue of
inadequate implementation of the scaffolding construction and control program was more than minor because it involved a credible impact on
safety, in that, numerous scaffolding configuration discrepancies were identified with construction of scaffolding on and in close proximity to
operable safety-related systems, structures, or components. The team concluded that this issue was of very low safety significance (Green) using
the significance determination process because an actual impact on safety systems did not occur.

Inspection Report# : 2001010(pdf)

Significance:. Dec 18, 2001

Identified By: NRC

Item Type: NCV NonCited Violation

Failure to properly classify issues in the licensee's Problem Identification and Resolution program that resulted in ineffective corrective
actions

Issues had not been classified properly in accordance with Licensee Procedure 0.5.CLSS, "Classification of Problem Identification Reports (PIRs)."
Some of these issues were inappropriately removed from the problem identification and resolution program when they should have remained. The
improper classification contributed to a lack of prompt corrective actions. These examples were contrary to 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion
XVI, "Corrective Action." This issue was placed in the licensee's problem identification and resolution program as Notification 10113236. This
violation is being treated as a noncited violation in accordance with Section VI.A of the NRC Enforcement Policy (Section 40A2.b). Two examples
included: Reactor building equipment cooling flow control valves located downstream of the drywell fan coil units were changed from a throttled to
fully open position in December 1995. In October 2000, the licensee identified that the procedure change for the valve positions had an inadequate
engineering review and that estimated actual flow through the cooling coils was significantly greater than rated flow for the coolers. The issue was
downgraded and removed from the corrective action program in November 2000, and reclassified as an "OTHER NAIT" work item with approval
from the licensee's condition review group. According to Procedure 0.5.CLSS, Revision 1, a classification of "OTHER" applied to any condition that
requires correction by a process outside of the corrective action program that does not represent an actual or potential condition or significant
condition adverse to quality (significant condition report or resolve condition report level of classification). After questions were raised by the team,
the licensee subsequently estimated the flow rates and determined analytically that the high flow condition was acceptable. The licensee
documented this issue in their corrective action process as Notification 10114113. This issue of conducting changes to the facility without adequate
engineering documen